
 
MINUTES 

LAKE COUNTY 
LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY 

 
MARCH 31, 2006 

 
The Lake County Local Planning Agency met on FRIDAY, MARCH 31, 2006 at 9:00 
a.m. in the Commission Chambers on the second floor of the Round Administration 
Building in Tavares, Florida. The Lake County Local Planning Agency considers 
comprehensive planning issues including amendments to Lake County’s Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
Members Present: 

David Jordan      District 1 
 Ann Dupee      District 2 
 Michael F. Carey     District 3 
 Richard Dunkel     District 4 
 Nadine Foley, Vice-Chairman   District 5 
 Sean Parks      At-Large Representative 
 Keith Schue, Secretary    At-Large Representative 
 Barbara Newman, Chairman    At-Large Representative 
 Becky Elswick     School Board Representative 
    
Staff Present: 
 Gregg Welstead, Deputy County Manager;  

Carol Stricklin, AICP Director, Growth Management Department 
 LaChea Parson, Assistant County Attorney 

Amye King, AICP, Deputy Director, Growth Management Department 
Dale Greiner, Director, Building Services, Growth Management 
Alfredo Massa, Senior Planner, Comprehensive Planning Division 
Shannon Suffron, Senior Planner, Comprehensive Planning Division 
Francis Franco, Senior GIS Analyst, Comprehensive Planning Division 
Thomas Wheeler, Planner, Comprehensive Planning Division 
Donna Bohrer, Office Associate III, Planning & Development Services Division 

 
Barbara Newman, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. and noted that a 
quorum was present.  She confirmed that Proof of Publication was on file in the 
Comprehensive Planning Division and that the meeting had been noticed pursuant to the 
Sunshine Statute. 



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM: 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION PAGE NO. 

   
A Discussion and Recommendation of Future Land Use Map 

Amendment for The Karlton Development of Regional 
Impact, Tracking No. LPA 06/3/1-2 
 

4 

   
B Transmittal of the draft Wekiva Goals, Objectives and 

Policies to the Board of County Commissioners. 
 
Postponed 

   
   



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 3

Amye King, AICP, Deputy Director, Growth Management, said there were several 
changes to the agenda.  Two presentations are scheduled, time permitting, including one 
on Conservation Subdivision Design by Heritage Green and one on Commercial Location 
Criteria.   
 
Ms. King added that staff was recommending postponement on the transmittal of the 
draft of the Wekiva Goals, Objectives and Policies (GOPs) to the Board of County 
Commissioners (BCC) because staff has just received communication from the 
consultants on the consistency of those GOPs.  There was no objection to that request. 
 
 
MOTION by Michael Carey, SECONDED by Nadine Foley to approve the 
December 15, 2005 minutes with corrections.  
 
FOR:  Newman, Foley, Schue, Carey, Parks, Dunkel, Dupee, 

Jordan  
 
AGAINST:  None 
 
ABSENT:  Elswick 
 
MOTION CARRIED: 8-0 
 
 
 
 
MOTION by Michael Carey, SECONDED by Sean Parks to approve the January 6, 
2006 minutes as submitted.  
 
FOR:  Newman, Foley, Schue, Carey, Parks, Dunkel, Dupee, 

Jordan  
 
AGAINST:  None 
 
ABSENT:  Elswick 
 
MOTION CARRIED: 8-0 



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 4

CASE NO: LPA #06/3/1-2 
OWNER: Karlton Village, Development of Regional Impact PAGE 1 
AGENT: Steven J. Richey, P.A. 
Alfredo Massa, Senior Planner, Comprehensive Planning, said this is a request to change 
the Future Land Use from Rural (1/5) to Urban Expansion (4/1) with two text 
amendments.  The first text amendment is to the Traffic Circulation Element, adding 
Policy 2-4 regarding the Karl Kahlert Parkway.  The second would amend the five-year 
Schedule of Capital Improvements including a $30,670,000 private and public funding 
partnership for the Karl Kahlert Parkway. 

Mr. Massa said this site consists of approximately 2,098 acres and is located East of 
US27 and South of Harwood Marsh Road.   

Mr. Massa said staff is recommending approval of the proposed amendments for 
transmittal to the Department of Community Affairs (DCA). 

Mr. Massa listed some of the features of this proposed development: 5,211 residential 
units including single family and multi-family units, which could include 2,496 age-
restricted units; a mixed-use village center with retail, commercial, office, institutional 
uses; a hotel; parks, recreation and open space which will be an interconnected pathway 
and trail system; sites for an elementary and middle school; 320 bed hospital; 120 bed 
adult congregate living facility; and sites for utilities and institutional uses, such as fire, 
police and ambulance services. 

Mr. Massa said the “highlight” of this proposal is the four-lane parkway, which will 
connect US27 and SR25 with the 429 Expressway.  This parkway would provide 
residents with an alternative to SR50 for east west travel plus access to SR429, SR408 
and the Southbound Turnpike. 

Mr. Massa said the Future Land Use of this site is Rural, which allows one dwelling unit 
per five acres.  The purpose of Rural is to allow for the continuation of agricultural uses 
and to protect native habitats.  The current zoning is Agriculture.  Mr. Massa said the 
surrounding land uses range from an operational orange grove on the West, water bodies, 
wetlands and rural lands on the South, and part of the Conserve II lands on the north, 
which is owned by the City of Orlando. On the East side is the Horizons West 
development project, which encompasses 28,000 acres with 45,000 homes, and a regional 
town center.   

This project is not located in the Clermont Joint Planning Area (JPA) but is adjacent to it. 
The Future Land Use change request is to the Urban Expansion Future Land Use 
designation.  At this time annexation is not being considered.    
Mr. Massa said the first text amendment is to Table X-1A of the Capital Improvements 
Element to add acquisition of the Right of Way (ROW) and new construction of the Karl 
Kahlert Parkway to be funded through a public and private partnership.  The second text 
amendment is to Policy 2-4.10 Traffic Circulation Element, which adds this parkway to 
the Traffic Circulation System.   
 



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 5

CASE NO: LPA #06/3/1-2 
OWNER: Karlton Village, Development of Regional Impact PAGE 2 
AGENT: Steven J. Richey, P.A. 
 
Mr. Massa said this proposal is consistent with the following objectives and policies of 
the Comprehensive Plan; Objective 1-1 Planning for Residential Quality and 
Neighborhood Cohesiveness; Policy 1-1.2 Open Space; Policy 1-1.6 Function of Future 
Land Use categories; Policy 1-1.6 regarding New Commercial Development Allowed 
within the Urban Land Use; Policy 1-1.6A and 1-1.6B Water and Sewer Requirements. 
 
Mr. Massa said this proposal is inconsistent with the following Comprehensive Policies: 
Policy 1-1.9 Availability of Facilities to Support Residential Land Uses and Policy 1-13.1 
Mandatory Compliance with the Concurrency Management System.  The schools in this 
district are all over capacity.  Also, an additional option for Solid Waste beyond the 
landfill and incinerator operated by the County may need to be considered by the 
Applicant.  Staff has suggested that additional traffic improvements may be necessary on 
US 27 and additional intersection analyses may have to be done. 
 
The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) said this development could have 
significant impact on the local roadway network.  However, the Applicant has been very 
willing to help mitigate the impacts of this development and the MPO feels the 
Development of Regional Impact (DRI) review process will provide for adequate 
mitigation. The MPO will work with the County and the Applicant to pursue 
Transportation Regional Incentive Program (TRIP) funding from the State.   
 
Mr. Massa discussed the comments received from other Lake County agencies.  Public 
Safety said location of the fire rescue service site should be determined using Geographic 
Information Systems (GIS) and it should be based on the location of area fire stations, 
including the location of the future public safety facilities planned for Orange County.   
 
Lake County School Board staff commented that this development would adversely 
impact area schools that are already over or nearly over capacity.   
 
Library Services said this area would benefit from a branch library in the future.   
 
The Water Resource Management Division commented that this area is in a Water Use 
Caution Area and the Land Development Regulations require a site-specific hydro-
geological study be performed to determine the recharge potential of the site. 
 
Mr. Massa said staff recommends that residential development be limited to 5,211 units 
in the subsequent Planned Unit Development (PUD) development order and stated that 
this is a request for transmittal to the DCA and not a request for approval.  
 
Sean Parks commented that this decision would be difficult because much of the 
documentation had arrived late.  He said an additional East/West road is definitely 
needed but he is still concerned about school concurrency and the potential affect on 



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 6

CASE NO: LPA #06/3/1-2 
OWNER: Karlton Village, Development of Regional Impact PAGE 3 
AGENT: Steven J. Richey, P.A.  
 
traffic.  He said he had just received a copy of the conceptual site plan.  He would have 
preferred to be able to review an urban sprawl analysis and a site-specific water analysis 
to determine the recharge potential.   
 
Mr. Schue was concerned about the DRI process and the involvement of the LPA.  He 
thought the LPA should be more involved in DRI reviews early in the process because 
these projects have a large impact.  He was concerned about possibly contradicting 
information on the website because it contained comments that the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) would not be “talked about”.  He thought they had made a decision not to 
amend the Comprehensive Plan until the new plan is adopted and yet this application 
includes a map amendment for over 2,000 acres. 
 
Ms. King referred to the website and said those comments referred specifically to the 
2025 FLUM.  She stated this is a proposed amendment to the current FLUM.  She said 
any landowner can apply for a DRI at any time and because they are exempt from the 
two-cycle requirements, that staff is required to review them.   
 
Mr. Schue said the LPA has opportunity to increase their level of involvement so they are 
more involved in the DRI process.   
 
Richard Dunkel was concerned about which Level of Service (LOS) is being used to 
design this development.  Mr. Massa said review is under the current Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 
Chairman Newman agreed with Mr. Parks’ concern about information being provided at 
the last minute. 
 
David Jordan agreed with Mr. Schue about not changing the FLUM, however, DRIs are 
not reviewed in the same manner as Future Land Use Amendments.  He said he wanted 
to be sure that public services are met and that citizens do not have an additional tax 
burden placed on them.  He said this project has the possibility to offer solutions and not 
just add to the problems.   
 
Mr. Schue said his comments were not intended to be a reflection on any staff member.  
However, this application involves a large piece of property and it is a land use change.   
 
Chairman Newman said the LPA is obligated to hear this request at this time.    
 
Steve Richey, Attorney for the Applicant, said the planners and consultants for this 
project would present information on Karlton Village. He said copies of the presentation 
had been provided to the LPA. 
 



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 7

CASE NO: LPA #06/3/1-2 
OWNER: Karlton Village, Development of Regional Impact PAGE 4 
AGENT: Steven J. Richey, P.A. 
 
Bill Owens, Real Estate Research Consultants, said he would discuss recent growth 
trends and his evaluation of the factors influencing future growth trends.  He said they 
had done the market study for Horizon’s West and Karlton Village and they are very 
familiar with this area.  They reviewed the commercial and residential growth patterns, 
identified emerging and existing employment centers and estimated the future land use 
demands.   
 
Mr. Owens said the rate of employment growth had been consistent and it included 
higher paying jobs.  He discussed the rate of population growth in Lake County and the 
regional population growth projections.   
 
Mr. Owens said the size of average households is decreasing, while the population is 
increasing.  Analysis of the Karlton Village area revealed only an 18 month inventory of 
available homes in area subdivisions. 
 
Mr. Owens discussed existing and emerging employment centers that could generate 
75,000 new jobs in the next fifteen years.  He said new homes will be needed to house 
these employees.   
 
Becky Elswick arrived late. 
 
Don McIntosh, President, Donald W. McIntosh Associates, discussed current and 
completed transportation improvements in this area.  He detailed the size of the office, 
retail and industrial spaces that are part of Horizons West, which is adjacent to this 
property.   
 
Mr. McIntosh said this Parkway would be an east/west connection between the Greenway 
and US27, and will help to alleviate congestion on Highways 50 and 192.  The Applicant 
will contribute land valued at six million dollars to improve this transportation corridor.   
 
Mr. McIntosh said this site had been in agricultural use and that the irrigation wells on 
site had been pumping water for years.  He said conservation measures and best 
management initiatives will be used to limit demand; enhanced recharge will be provided 
in the design of the stormwater system, and that water will be retained on site.  He said 
the project would not adversely affect the region’s lakes and wetlands. He said the 
Developer would have to conform to the Comprehensive Plan and the Land Development 
Regulations (LDRs). He said the Applicant would provide for water balancing on site, 
recharge preservation and other initiatives to reduce the impact of this development.  He 
said a detailed hydrogeological study would be submitted as required by the DRI review 
regulations. 
 
 



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 8

CASE NO: LPA #06/3/1-2 
OWNER: Karlton Village, Development of Regional Impact PAGE 5 
AGENT: Steven J. Richey, P.A. 
 
Steve  Adams, Land Planning Group (LPG) Environmental and Permitting Services, said 
the land is currently unimproved pasture.  He said remnant natural communities on the 
site are sparse, generally located close to wetlands or lakeshores.  He said the Applicant 
has a purchase contract pending on the “Schofield property” which is part of a tract 
designated for State purchase as part of Florida Forever program.  There are 
approximately 300 acres of scattered wetlands on site, only 10 acres will be impacted for 
infrastructure.  Project design criteria is compliant with Avoidance and Minimization of 
St. Johns River Water Management District (SJRWMD) and the Army Corp of 
Engineers.   
 
Wildlife surveys revealed the presence of sand skinks, scrub jays, gopher tortoises and 
wading birds.  A flora survey had been done as well and those sites would be included in 
buffers and preservation areas.  There will be an on-site gopher tortoise preservation site.  
This population has tested positive for respiratory disease and is not suitable for off-site 
relocation.  Mr. Adams said instead of a “take permit” they are proposing credit for the 
acquisition and preservation of the “Schofield Property” referenced earlier.   
 
Kirian Kilday, President, Kilday and Associates, said that the DRI Master Plan meets the 
three functions of Urban Expansion.  Those functions are to contain urban sprawl, to 
economically provide for services and to promote efficient use of land while providing 
for adequate open space and native habitat.   
 
Mr. Kilday considered this project to be infill.  He said it was an extension of the Urban 
Expansion area to the West and the Horizons West on the opposite side.  He said this 
would be a self-sustained community and the density would be 2.4 units per acre, which 
is less than the maximum four units per acre.   
 
Mr. Kilday said the project design began with analysis of the environmental information. 
Preservation of topography and land for a wildlife corridor along the wetlands were 
important considerations.  He said the “Schofield property” would be acquired and 
preserved as part of this corridor.   
 
Mr. Kilday said the hospital had approached Karlton to purchase the property located in 
Orange County that is adjacent to the site of Valencia College.   The developer will be 
providing 50 acres for elementary and middle schools.  He said the community center 
will provide Neighborhood or Community Commercial Uses and that adequate Regional 
Commercial will be in the Horizons Town Center.  The public safety site will be located 
in proximity to US27.  Another site is reserved for a Public Library and for possible 
government offices.  Pedestrian paths will provide interconnection between the 
neighborhoods.  He said approximately half of the housing will be age-restricted, the 
remainder will be work-force housing in the town center and high-end homes along the  
 



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 9

CASE NO: LPA #06/3/1-2 
OWNER: Karlton Village, Development of Regional Impact PAGE 6 
AGENT: Steven J. Richey, P.A. 
 
lakes.   
 
Steve Richey said the school location was selected by the school superintendent.  He said 
by the time this project is ready to move forward it will be subject to mandatory school 
concurrency.  He said their traffic impacts will be subject to continued review with a 
stricter LOS methodology than that required by the Comprehensive Plan.  He said the 
Development Order will have timetables for traffic improvements.      
 
There was a five-minute break. 
 
Ms. King introduced staff from some of the governmental agencies that had participated 
in the review of Karlton Village. 
 
In response to questions from Mr. Parks, Mr. Owens explained that the smallest 
subdivisions used in his analysis were those with 25 single-family residences.  Mr. Parks 
asked if a re-use water system could be established by the Applicant.  Mr. McIntosh said 
they are planning a reuse system for surface and other non-potable water, which would be 
used for irrigation.  They have also contacted Conserve II regarding reuse water.  Mr. 
Parks thought this was a critical issue and he was concerned because reuse water was 
now in demand.  Mr. Richey said this plan would return the project’s waste water to the 
site, he did admit that there might not be enough reuse water available and Conserve II 
has been asked to supplement their system until it is fully operational.  
 
In response to questions from Mr. Parks about school capacity, Mr. Richey said school 
capacity would either have to be provided or paid for by this development.  The school 
site will be available when infrastructure is in place and the capacity is needed.  Mr. 
Richey said they are willing to do whatever the School Board needs and he added that 
schools could be built through a Community Development District (CDD) or a school 
benefit district.   
 
In response to questions from Mr. Parks about the parkway and other traffic issues, Mr. 
Richey said decisions on a possible “fly over” or other intersection improvements will be 
determined by the Department of Transportation (DOT).  He added that adequate Right-
of-Way (ROW) would be provided to accommodate six lanes, access points will be 
limited, and “critter crossings” and pedestrian walkways will be built under the road.  
 
Mr. Dunkel was concerned about school capacity.  Mr. Richey said school concurrency 
will require that capacity for students must be met.  He explained some of the “fair share” 
options that the Applicant can utilize to meet concurrency, and that one option would be 
to have all the housing age-restricted.  Mr. Dunkel said it could be possible that the total 
development would be age restricted.  Mr. Richey doubted that would happen, but said 
the school sites would go to the School Board.   



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 10

CASE NO: LPA #06/3/1-2 
OWNER: Karlton Village, Development of Regional Impact PAGE 7 
AGENT: Steven J. Richey, P.A. 
 
Mr. Dunkel and Mr. Owens discussed the jobs created by this project and the Horizons 
West Town Center.  Mr. Owens said jobs would range from professional to retail.  Mr. 
Dunkel asked about the workforce housing and Mr. Owens explained they would not be 
building “affordable housing” but they will find and document housing for the work 
force.   
 
Mr. Dunkel asked about LOS and Mr. Richey said this project will be subject to the LOS 
requirements that are in effect when the plat is presented.  
 
Mr. Dunkel suggested that the paved width of the trails should be twelve feet to 
accommodate all types of users.   
 
Mr. Carey was concerned about education and Mr. Richey said their Development Order 
would include a requirement for school concurrency.   
 
Mr. Schue agreed with Mr. Parks’ comments on the parkway design.  Mr. Richey said 
other traffic concerns would be addressed during the DRI process, including access to 
Lake Louisa Park, the analysis of traffic impacts will be ongoing. 
 
Mr. Schue asked about the size of the Consumptive Use Permit (CUP) they would be 
requesting.  Mr. McIntosh said the estimate for potable water is two million gallons per 
day at build-out.  Non-potable water use will also be two million gallons.  Those figures 
include the entire development.  He said the CUP would be requested by Lake Utilities. 
 
Mr. Schue asked about the number of jobs actually created by Karlton Village.  Mr. 
Owen said the main job generators would be the hospital, the professional offices 
associated with it and those in the Karlton Commons. He estimated that 3,750 jobs would 
be created on site, 2,400 associated with the hospital, 600 in retail and services, 400-500 
office jobs, 100 in schools, 100 in hospitality, and 100 civic and government jobs. 
 
Mr. Schue and Mr. Richey discussed the Open Space.  Mr. Richey said the preliminary 
plan shows 35%  without calculating the open space in the 100+ acres of ROW for the 
Parkway.  Mr. Richey said the Regional Planning Council had commented on Open 
Space connectivity for wildlife corridors.  Mr. Schue remained concerned that this project 
is being reviewed under the current Open Space rules.  
 
In response to questions from Ms. Foley regarding the CUP, Mr. Richey said during 
review by the WMD, consideration will be given to the existing agriculture CUPs.  He 
said some of this site had previously received water from Conserve II.   
 
Mr. Jordan asked if a CDD would be part of the financing and Mr. Richey said it would 
be an option for infrastructure or schools.  He confirmed that central utilities will be  



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 11

CASE NO: LPA #06/3/1-2 
OWNER: Karlton Village, Development of Regional Impact PAGE 8 
AGENT: Steven J. Richey, P.A. 
 
 
provided by Lake Utilities and said the Impact Fees will more than cover the public 
service buildings needed to serve Karlton Village.  
 
Ann Dupee thought the road should be four lanes and Mr. Richey said it would be.  She 
made positive comments on the library site, the increase in the tax base and voiced a 
concern about sufficient active space.  Greg Beliveau, LPG, said Clermont’s LOS for 
active parks and recreation had been used in this design.  He added that the neighborhood 
pods would have parks, which are not yet shown on the maps.  
 
In response to Mr. Parks, Mr. Richey said their market analysis had determined the 
amount of age-restricted housing.  He said the office park had been “tied” to the hospital 
because of the proximity to office space in Horizons West.  Mr. Richey explained that 
because this site is located within a high recharge area, stormwater treatment will meet 
strict quality standards. 
 
Tom Burke, Planner, MPO, commented on the LOS on US27.  He said the MPO has been 
involved in the ongoing DRI meetings and the Parkway is identified as a need in the 2025 
long range plan of the MPO.  Mr. Burke discussed other connector road options and the 
role of the Expressway Authority.   
 
There was discussion that the Development Order would be “tied” to the land use change.  
Mr. Schue said it is not possible to make a conditional future land use assignment like 
that.  He said adopting the future land use change would change the FLUM and that 
change would remain in effect regardless of what happened with the development order.   
 
Mr. Richey responded that the Development Order (DO) would be in place and any 
development of the property would be subject to that DO. 
 
In response to Ms. Elswick, Mr. Richey said concurrency for schools is required in the 
application and then included in the Development Order.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Elaine Renick said the water issues are her greatest concern.  She didn’t understand why 
the proximity to Horizon West was justification for more density.  She thought the road 
was a “carrot”, and the increase in road capacity would be offset by the impact of this 
development and that others that will use this as justification for development.  Ms. 
Renick also cautioned against considering their vote today to be “just a transmittal”. 

 
Mr. Richey said this project meets the criteria for Urban Expansion.  He added that if this 
property is developed as five acre tracks, it would be the worst type of sprawl. He said 
this would be a well-designed compact community, with a parkway, it would preserve  



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 12

CASE NO: LPA #06/3/1-2 
OWNER: Karlton Village, Development of Regional Impact PAGE 9 
AGENT: Steven J. Richey, P.A. 
 
environmental lands and all of the concurrency rules will be met.  
 
MOTION by David Jordan, SECONDED by Richard Dunkel to recommend a 
request for transmittal of the Karlton Village DRI to the Board of County 
Commissioners.  
 
Mr. Jordan thought this was an opportunity to have growth ‘planned’, there will be 
appropriate assessments, this project will be subject to more review, and it will be paying 
for itself. 
 
Mr. Carey agreed with Mr. Jordan’s comments and he thought this was a well-planned 
mixed-use development. 
 
Mr. Dunkel said he preferred this well designed project to several, multiple, smaller 
projects in the same area.   
 
Mr. Schue appreciated the detailed presentation and complimented staff on their hard 
work.  He remained concerned that the LPA wasn’t involved earlier.  He said he realized 
he would be in the minority but he thought it was important to point out his concerns.   
 
Mr. Schue thought this would contribute to an over-allocation to accommodate the 
project population.  He didn’t believe that the need for this land use change has been 
proved adequately and that this development promoted urban sprawl.  He said that 
agreement on school concurrency has not yet be determined, and he was concerned that 
there is an assumption that concurrency has been satisfied.  Although the non-residential 
component is a positive, he thought there was still an imbalance and that the residents 
will outnumber the jobs created in Lake County. 
 
He thought that buffers and open space could have been better designed to benefit 
wildlife and enhance aquifer recharge.  Because this development is located in proximity 
to the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern, their water use will affect the aquifer 
and the overall health of the Green Swamp.  
 
Mr. Schue said there are admitted inconsistencies with the Comprehensive Plan 
according to the staff report and because of that it should not be approved.  He said this is 
the last large piece of property in the Four Corners areas and he would have preferred to 
look at this property in context with those that surround it. 

 
Mr. Parks agreed and said he was not happy with the process, and thought even the 
amount of information provided today is minimal.  He said that the impact of this project 
will directly affect how he looks at the proposed FLUM and the allocation of those 
densities and what urban densities are needed throughout the County. 



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 13

FOR:  Newman, Foley, Carey, Parks, Dunkel, Dupee, Jordan, 
Elswick  

 
AGAINST:  Schue 
 
MOTION CARRIED: 8-1 
 
Ms. King said the Karlton Village Development Order would be heard by the Zoning 
Board. 

 
There was a lunch break and the meeting resumed at 1:30 p.m. 
 
The presentation on Commercial Location Criteria was not completed and will be 
rescheduled for a later meeting. 
 
There was a five-minute break. 
 
Ms. King assured Robert Curry that the PowerPoint presentation on Commercial 
Location Criteria would be placed on the County’s website. 
 
Mr. Schue said the LPA had discussed making commercial uses a Future Land Use and in 
that case, many of those applications would be processed like Small Scale Map 
Amendments.  He asked if commercial uses were being considered within other land use 
categories. 
 
Ms. King said that mixed-use developments would include commercial uses.  She added 
that many people are satisfied with it as it is currently; she said perhaps the policy on 
commercial uses could be refined and clarified.   
 
Mr. Dunkel asked about new commercial development areas in the Wekiva area and how 
those areas would be designed.  Ms. King said there are no new areas and there are no 
design standards at this time.  She added that CP zoning can be ‘conditioned’ to a certain 
extent.  In response to comments from Mr. Schue, Ms. King explained that the “red 
circles” have been generally ‘scaled out’.  She said staff is reviewing the undeveloped 
commercial sites to see if those uses are still appropriate.  Ms. King said staff is not 
recommending commercial overlays, but that commercial uses “be tied to the ground”.  
The cities have recommended specific commercial categories.  Mr. Schue thought it was 
important to have some direction for appropriate commercial uses and locations in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Mr. Jordan and Ms. King discussed some of the existing 
inconsistencies.  There are some properties with commercial zoning that are inconsistent 
with the land use. 
 
Ms. Foley was concerned about commercial strips along the roadways.  Mr. Schue 
thought that including an allocation of commercial square footage in each land use could 
lead to those commercial strips.  He said a commercial land use category would help to 
prevent that. 



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 14

 
Robert Curry discussed the commercial “red dots” on the FLUMs.   
 
Ms. King asked the LPA to review the consultant’s comments.  She said the consultants 
had recommended formulating a “Mission Statement” for the time period of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
There were comments from LPA members on the issue of a mission statement.  Ms. 
Foley thought although it hadn’t been specifically stated, the LPA had consensus on 
locating higher densities closer to towns; protection of conservation lands and the 
importance of agreements between the County and the cities.  Ms. King said the mission 
statement was imbedded in the goals and policies.  Mr. Dunkel thought the vision 
statement and the JPAs were closely related.  Mr. Carey thought the primary purpose of 
the public input was to formulate the Mission Statement and he felt that input should be 
incorporated.  Mr. Jordan said the mission should reflect community values and he was 
concerned about it becoming over-complicated.  Ms. King suggested that the LPA should 
review the comments and discuss it at a later date.   
 
Ms. King discussed the memo from LAMPL Consultants regarding inconsistencies with 
the Wekiva regulations and suggested further discussion at a later meeting. 
 
There was discussion regarding the format of the upcoming public meetings.  Ms. King 
said it was staff’s intent at these meetings to gather public input. Mr. Schue said that in 
the future he would like staff to notify the LPA of planned changes to the agenda in 
advance of the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Bill Thomas said development in the Montverde area was making it more difficult for 
residents to sell homes.  He said reducing the densities on those properties, would reduce 
the value of the property.  He said some residents want to sell their property and move 
because this area has changed and is now incompatible with the lifestyle they originally 
moved there to have. 
 
Mr. Schue raised the issue of the Comprehensive Plan schedule and noted that the 
policies have not been finalized.  Ms. King said staff is waiting for comments from the 
consultants.  She discussed the timeline in the consultant’s memo and noted that 
some dates were unacceptable to staff.   
 
Mr. Carey said he would like to meet after public meetings to work on a Mission 
Statement, then review the Comprehensive Plan with that mission in mind and then 
consider the consultant’s comments. 
 
It was decided to schedule a FLUM workshop and to not receive public input at that 
meeting. 
 



LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                   MARCH 31, 2006   

 15

Robert Curry suggested that the LPA review the summary of public input from the earlier 
round of public meetings.  He was concerned about the wording of the public meeting 
invitations and he didn’t think it was an accurate reflection of what was being discussed.   
 
Mr. Schue thought the Comprehensive Plan polices should be set before parcel-based 
decisions are made on the FLUM.   
 
There was discussion about new floodplain maps for the County.  Ms. King said the flood 
maps are not adopted into the Comprehensive Plan, however, they are included in the 
Data, Inventory and Analysis (DIA). 
  
There was discussion on land allocation for industrial uses.  
 
Chairman Newman said she wanted to recognize Shannon Suffron for her excellent work. 
 
Egor Emory thought the “vision” for the County should be specific and it should address 
the financial cost, the commute times and other quality of life issues.   
 
The Chair adjourned the meeting at   3:23 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________________  ____________________________  
Donna R. Bohrer     Keith Schue 
Office Associate III     Secretary 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  


